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Building	Recording	
Level	2	

Sacred	Heart	Convent,	Goresbrook	Road,	Dagenham,	Essex	RM9	6XD	
	

 Summary		1.

This	is	a	Building	Recording	for	Sacred	Heart	Convent,	Goresbrook	Road,	Dagenham,	

Essex	RM9	6XD.	The	building	is	a	red	brick	three-storey	building	with	a	single	storey	

wing,	with	large	timber	sash	windows	to	the	ground	and	first	floor	and	UPVc	double	

glazed	windows	to	the	C20	dormers,	which	form	the	second	floor.	The	building	was	

constructed	for	the	sole	purpose	of	a	Convent	and	remained	as	a	convent	until	the	

c.2010.	(It	should	be	noted	that	the	Sacred	Heart	Convent	School	is	separate	to	this	

building.)		

The	property	is	not	listed	and	has	been	refused	listed	status.	(Refer	to	Appendix	3)	

However,	the	building	has	been	recognised	as	a	building	of	local	value	and	therefore	has	

protection	under	the	National	Planning	Policy	Framework	(NPPF)	as	a	heritage	asset.		

This	Building	Record	has	been	undertaken	to	comply	with	Planning	Permission	at	the	

request	of	Historic	England.		

 Aims	and	results		2.

The	aim	of	this	statement	is	to	record	the	building	as	per	Historic	England	guidance	-	

Understanding	Historic	Buildings,	A	Guide	to	Good	Recording	Practice	(2016)	to	a	Level	2	

due	to	the	age	and	the	simplicity	of	the	building.		
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 Introduction	3.

3.1	 Location	of	the	Building	

Sacred	Heart	Convert,		

Goresbrook	Road,		

Dagenham,	

	Essex		

RM9	6XD		

3.2	 Grid	Reference		

TQ	48410	83787		

3.3	 Statutory	Designation		

The	building	was	refused	listed	status	(designated	heritage	asset),	however,	it	has	been	

recognised	locally	as	a	significant	building	and	therefore	has	been	recognised	as	a	

Heritage	Asset	under	the	NPPF.		

3.4	 Date	of	Recording		

Tuesday	17	July	2018.		

3.5	 Recorded	by		

Janice	Gooch	MSc	CHE	AssocRICS	IHBC	ACIfA		
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 Description	of	building		4.

The	building	is	built	in	a	neo-Georgian	style	in	a	mixture	of	red	and	plum	coloured	bricks	

in	English	bond	with	a	hipped	tiled	roof	and	brick	chimneys.	The	building	has	two	

adjoining	wings	and	a	cupola	on	the	roof	of	the	central	section.	The	main	entrance	

doors	are	framed	by	mock	Doric	columns	and	a	scrolled	pediment.	Original	sash	

windows	have	been	retained	and	two	larger	round	headed	windows	feature	on	the	

western	wing,	which	houses	the	Chapel.	The	architectural	details	are	simple	and	reflect	

the	building	function	and	the	simplicity	of	the	1930s	design	ethos.		

The	building	was	built	to	be	used	as	a	Convert	and	continued	its	use	until	c.2010.	Since	

then	the	property	has	been	vacant	with	Guardian	occupants	providing	security	for	the	

property.		

 Requirements	for	recording	the	building		5.

The	building	recording	was	requested	by	the	Historic	England	Archaeological	Advisor	as	

part	of	the	planning	process.		

 Acknowledgements		6.

Copies	of	the	existing	building	(plans	and	elevations)	have	been	taken	from	the	Planning	

application	for	guidance.	The	drawings	have	been	undertaken	by	Line	Style	Architecture	

and	BluePlan.		

OS	Maps	are	via	Groundsure	Insights	and	obtained	by	Touchstone	Archaeology	(July	

2017)	for	the	Desk	Based	Assessment.		
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 Development	of	the	site		7.

The	earliest	OS	Map	indicates	that	the	site	was	formerly	agricultural	ground	and	remain	

so	on	the	1919	OS	map.		

The	1939	OS	map	indicates	the	construction	of	the	Convent	and	school,	with	Goresbrook	

Park	housing	estate	to	the	north	of	the	site.	By	1961,	the	school	to	the	east	of	the	

Convent	was	called	Goresbrook	County	Secondary	School	and	a	new	school,	Sacred	

Heart	Convent	Secondary	School	had	been	constructed	to	the	south	west	of	the	

Convent.		

The	building	therefore	dates	the	early	1930s,	shortly	after	the	Ford	Motor	Works	had	

been	constructed.	Information	put	forward	during	the	appeal	to	redevelop	the	site	

established	that	the	building	was	constructed	to	serve	the	workers	at	Ford	and	their	

families,	many	of	them	residents	on	the	Becontree	Estate,	and	many	of	whom	were	

Roman	Catholic.	Ford	Motor	Works	was	once	one	of	the	largest	employers	within	the	

area	and	were	recognised	for	looking	after	their	employers.	The	plant	employed	over	

40,000	by	1953	and	at	its	height	covered	473	acres.		

The	single	storey	building	to	the	east	of	the	main	convent	and	appears	to	have	been	

constructed	at	a	similar	time.	Access	was	not	possible	at	the	time	of	the	survey;	

however,	this	area	appears	to	include	the	boiler	room	and	maybe	it	would	have	

originally	houses	the	laundry	and	other	service	areas	or	provided	simple	

accommodation	for	a	care	taker	or	similar.		
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Figure	5	-	second	floor	plan	
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	Each	bedroom	has	been	dedicated	to	a	separate	Saint,	as	the	following:		

	
Bedroom	No	 Saint	

1	 St	Teresa	

2	 St	Philomena	

3	 St	Margaret	Mary	

4	 ?	

5	 Our	Lady	

6	 Sacred	Heart	

7	 St	Augustine	

8	 ?	

9	 ?	

10	 St	Patrick	

11	 St	Ann	

12	 St	Andrew	

13	 St	Bernadette	

14	 St	Rita	

15	 St	Jude	

16	 St	George	

17	 St	Anthony	

18	 St	John/St	James/St	Paul	

19	 St	David	
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The	second	floor	was	converted	in	c.1962	to	provide	additional	bedrooms.	These	rooms	

are	slightly	larger	than	the	first-floor	rooms,	but	have	plain	walls,	modern	plain	timber	

doors	and	UPVc	windows.	Within	these	bedrooms	there	is	a	wash	hand	basin	and	built-

in	wardrobe,	drawers	and	shelves.		

The	first-floor	rooms	have	picture	rails,	with	simple	architrave	and	skirting	boards.	The	

doors	(apart	from	one	replacement)	are	simple	5	horizontal	panel	doors	with	modern	

ironmongery.	Most	of	these	rooms	have	no	fitted	furniture	but	do	have	a	wash	hand	

basin.	The	first-floor	bathrooms	and	WC’s	retain	the	pale	yellow,	with	black	detail,	tiles	

and	many	of	the	original	features	and	fittings	remain.	(Refer	to	photos).		

All	bedrooms	are	individually	decorated.		

The	ground	floor	rooms	are	generally	panelled,	and	this	appears	to	be	original	to	the	

property.	A	number	of	original	door	handles	remain	to	these	rooms.	Within	the	service	

corridor,	the	walls	are	lined	with	light	yellow	tiles.		

 Relationship	to	setting		8.

The	Convert	was	built	at	the	same	time	as	the	Goresbrook	Park	Estate,	when	Dagenham	

and	the	surrounding	area	was	developing	and	expanding	mainly	due	to	the	Ford	Motor	

Plant.		

Planning	of	the	Dagenham	plant	began	in	the	early	1920s,	a	time	when	lorries	were	

small	and	road	networks	little	developed.	In	the	UK,	bulk	supplies	were	still	delivered	by	

water	transport,	so	the	Dagenham	plant,	like	the	Ford	Trafford	Park	plant	which	it	would	

replace,	needed	good	water	access.	Dagenham	on	the	southern	estuarial	edge	of	Essex	

offered	the	prospect	of	a	deepwater	port	(formed	as	Dagenham	Dock	in	1887)	which	

would	allow	for	bulk	deliveries	of	coal	and	steel	on	a	far	larger	scale	than	the	barges	of	
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the	Manchester	Ship	Canal	could	manage	at	the	old	plant.	In	1924,	Ford	Motor	

Company	purchased	land	in	the	Dagenham	marshes	for	£167,700.		

On	17	May	1929,	Edsel	Ford	marked	the	start	of	construction	on	the	site	by	cutting	the	

first	turf	in	the	marshes.	Construction	on	the	site	continued	for	28	months	and	required	

around	22,000	concrete	piles	to	be	driven	down	through	the	clay	of	the	marshland	site	

to	adequately	support	a	factory	that	from	the	start	was	planned	to	incorporate	its	own	

steel	foundry	and	coal-fired	power	station.	Over	a	weekend	in	September,	over	2,000	

staff	and	their	families	relocated	from	Manchester	to	Essex.	These	families,	as	well	as	

others,	created	a	mass	influx	in	the	area	and	housing,	as	well	as	other	amenities	were	

required.	Along	with	the	houses,	schools	and	religious	buildings	were	constructed	to	

accommodate	the	demands.		

 	Significance	of	Building		9.

The	building	has	been	recognised	of	local	importance	due	to	the	links	with	its	setting,	

rather	than	as	an	exemplar	piece	of	architecture.		

The	Inspector	for	the	appeal	(13/00030/REFUSL)	found	that	the	building	forms	part	of	

the	social	history	and	‘collective	memory’	of	the	area	which	was	the	focus	for	a	

significant	amount	of	public	housing	development.	The	Ford	development	was	the	

largest	motor	plant	in	Europe	at	the	time.	At	the	appeal	local	residents	gave	evidence	to	

demonstrate	that	the	building	is	valued	locally	and	that	many	local	people	have	strong	

historic	connections	with	it.		

The	English	Heritage	Report	(refer	to	Appendix	4)	describes	the	building	as	being	

constructed	of	good	quality	brickwork	but	that	its	overall	composition	is	‘bland’.	The	

Inspector	noted	several	features	which	contributed	to	English	Heritage’s	decision	not	to	

place	the	building	on	the	statutory	list	but	did	not	consider	that	these	significantly	

detract	from	the	overall	visual	quality	of	the	building	or	undermine	its	significance	as	a	
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non-designated	heritage	asset.	Therefore,	in	the	context	of	its	surroundings	and	the	

street	scene,	it	was	accepted	that	the	building	‘stands	out’	from	its	setting	which	is	

predominantly	housing	to	the	north	and	east	of	the	site,	and	schools	and	playing	fields	

to	the	south	and	west.		

English	Heritage	considered	the	building	as	an	education	building,	as	they	state,	‘the	

Society	of	the	Sacred	Heart	were	a	teaching	order	and	this	building	was	probably	used	

for	teaching,	it	should	also	be	assessed	under	the	English	Heritage	Listing	Selection	

Guide	for	Education	Buildings	(April	2011)’.	Internally	(of	which	they	were	not	provided	

of	any	photos	or	information	at	the	time	of	consideration),	the	building	does	not	appear	

to	have	been	used	as	a	school	or	conjunction	with	the	adjoining	school	(Sacred	Heart	

Convent	Secondary	School	constructed	c.1960s).	The	layout	of	the	Convent	provides	

communal	spaces	(such	as	dining	room,	sitting	room,	office,	kitchen,	etc)	and	a	double	

height	chapel	to	the	ground	floor	with	bedrooms,	WC’s	and	bathrooms	to	the	first	and	

second	floor.	It	would	appear	from	the	plans	and	the	planning	history,	that	the	interior	

to	the	ground	and	first	floor	have	not	changed,	apart	from	the	creation	of	the	lift	(the	

tower	to	the	rear	elevation)	c.1992	and	the	second	floor	being	created	for	additional	

bedrooms	in	the	c.1960s.		

The	building	is	of	good	quality	brick,	with	simple	architectural	details.	The	dormer	

windows	to	the	front	and	rear	elevation	do	not	enhance	the	building	architecturally.	

Internally	the	plan	form	appears	to	be	original,	with	limited	works	undertaken.	The	

bathrooms	and	WC	contain	original	tiles	and	accessories	which	are	in	good	condition.		

The	interior	of	the	Chapel	though	now	stripped	of	any	religious	statues	or	alters	retains	

a	grandeur	that	contrasts	with	the	simple	details	in	the	main	building.	There	are	more	

subtle	differences	between	the	working	and	general	living	space	on	the	ground	floor,	

the	bedrooms	and	the	service	area.	The	function	of	the	building	can	be	read	in	the	

layout	and	design.	The	quality	of	the	finishes	is		
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high;	however,	this	appears	to	ensure	longevity	of	the	fittings	(and	the	subsequent	care	

in	use),	rather	than	as	a	display	of	wealth	or	status	as	would	be	found	in	larger	houses.		

The	building	recognises	a	specific	way	of	life	for	a	group	in	society,	as	explained	in	the	

criteria	for	listing	‘Their	architectural	evidence	remains	testimony	not	only	to	a	religious	

but	also	to	a	certain	female	emancipation	in	the	nineteenth	and	twentieth	centuries.’		

 Works	Undertaken		10.

The	building	has	had	limited	alteration	since	its	original	construction	in	c.1930s.	The	

main	alteration	has	been	the	creation	of	the	additional	bedrooms	of	the	second	floor	

(c.1962)	which	has	resulted	in	the	large	dormers	to	the	front	and	rear	elevations.	

Though	this	was	required	to	provide	additional	bedrooms	for	the	Convert,	

architecturally	it	is	of	poor	design	and	takes	the	simplicity	of	the	design	away.		

Internally	there	has	been	additional	fire	doors	installed	into	the	main	staircase	and	an	

up-grading	of	the	ground	floor	WC.	The	bathrooms	and	WC’s	retain	the	1930s	details	of	

tiles	and	some	of	the	accessories	(ie	towel	rail,	toilet	roll	holder,	etc)	remain.		

 Sources	of	Information		11.

11.1	Historic	England	–	Criteria	for	Listing		

The	criteria	set	by	Historic	England	when	considering	whether	an	asset	is	worthy	of	

listing:		

Convents		

English	Catholic	convents,	some	with	pre-Reformation	roots,	but	most	founded	by	

English	Catholics	in	exile,	first	re-appeared	in	England	as	refugees	from	the	French	

Revolution.	They	were	nuns	–	enclosed	contemplatives	–	who	followed	a	medieval	Rule	
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requiring	enclosure	and	elaborate	choral	observances.	By	contrast	were	the	Sisters	who	

blossomed	in	the	mid-	nineteenth	century;	these	followed	later	Rules	and	engaged	in	

activities	such	as	teaching	and	nursing.	Convents	tended	to	have	an	early	nucleus	which	

was	later	added	to	in	a	piecemeal	fashion,	rather	than	being	single-phase	set	pieces.	The	

oldest	Catholic	Convent	in	England,	Bar	Gate,	York,	founded	in	1686	with	a	chapel	of	

about	1770	(listed	Grade	II*)	is	an	example.	Pugin,	by	contrast,	built	complete	convents	

(Handsworth,	Birmingham,	1839-41;	listed	Grade	II)	and	there	also	are	examples	by	his	

followers	(Poor	Clares,	Darlington,	County	Durham,	1850s	(closed);	listed	Grade	II;	

church	Grade	II*),	but	such	complete	plans	are	rare.		

Nuns	had	cells,	common	rooms	and	a	refectory;	Sisters	had	less	specialist	plans.	The	

chapel	is	usually	the	most	prominent	building,	with	access	for	the	public	restricted	to	an	

‘extern’	wing	or	sidechapel;	a	separate	house	for	chaplains	is	also	characteristic.	Overall	

an	institutional	character	is	met	with,	akin	to	hospital	architecture,	but	reflecting	the	

work	of	each	Order:	some,	such	as	the	Carmelites,	insisted	on	austerity.		

Nineteenth	century	Anglican	women’s	groups	had	a	hard	time	establishing	themselves:	

their	convents,	such	the	now-closed	House	of	Mercy,	Clewer,	Berkshire	(1880s;	listed	

Grade	II)	are	even	rarer.	Female	religious	communities	are	now	under	increasing	threat	

of	closure,	largely	a	result	of	declining	numbers	of	new	recruits,	and	buildings	will	be	

disposed	of.	Their	architectural	evidence	remains	testimony	not	only	to	a	religious	but	

also	to	a	certain	female	emancipation	in	the	nineteenth	and	twentieth	centuries.		

https://content.historicengland.org.uk/images-books/publications/dlsg-places-

worship/heag124-	places-of-worship-lsg.pdf		

The	plan	of	the	Sacred	Heart	Convent	follows	the	above	guidelines	by	being	of	more	

institutional	in	character	with	the	clearly	defined	chapel,	cells,	common	rooms	and	

refectory.		
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11.2	Archival	&	Desktop		

Appendix	5	provides	details	of	Historic	Environment	Record	and	British	History	Online	

details.		

11.3	Specialist	Reports		

A	Desk	Top	Assessment	has	been	undertaken	by	Touchstone	Archaeology	August	2017.		

11.4	Further	Investigation		

Further	investigation	into	to	the	link	with	the	Ford	Factory	and	the	development	of	the	

housing	estates	and	Convent	should	be	undertaken	to	ascertain	any	link	between	them.		

It	may	not	be	possible	to	ascertain	the	architect	due	to	the	type	of	building,	though	

further	investigation	into	the	above	may	provide	some	links.		
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 Appendix	1	-	Photographs		12.

		
		

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

Figure	6	-	front	elevation		

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

Figure	7	-	plaque	on	the	bell	tower		 	
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Figure	10	-	front	entrance	door	letter	box		

	

		

	

		

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

Figure	11	-	front	entrance	door	handle		
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Figure	13	-	rear	elevation		

	

	

	

		

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

Figure	14	-	detail	to	the	rear	elevation	of	the	chapel		
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Figure	16	-	architectural	detail	to	bottom	of	window	to	side	elevation	of	chapel	

	

	

	

		

	

	

Figure	17	-	side	elevation	of	single	storey	extension		
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Figure	19	-	standard	rooms	to	top	floor		
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	Figure	21	-	top	flight	of	main	staircase		
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Figure	23	-	delicate	detail	in	WC		
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Figure	24	-	detail	in	the	Bathroom		
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Figure	26	-	original	towel	rail		
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Figure	28	-	communal	'Kitchen'	on	first	floor		

	

	

		

	

	

		

	

		

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

Figure	29-	bathroom	on	first	floor	by	communal	“kitchen”	
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Figure	30	-	toilet	roll	holder		

	

	

	

		

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

		

	

	

Figure	31	-	each	bedroom	is	dedicated	to	a	Saint		



Building Record for: 
Sacred Heart Convert, Dagenham, Essex.  

	

	 	 Touchstone	Archaeology		41	

Figure	32	-	leaded	light	detail	to	first	floor	onto	Chapel		

	

	

	

		

	

	

	

	



Building Record for: 
Sacred Heart Convert, Dagenham, Essex.  



Building Record for: 
Sacred Heart Convert, Dagenham, Essex.  



Building Record for: 
Sacred Heart Convert, Dagenham, Essex.  



Building Record for: 
Sacred Heart Convert, Dagenham, Essex.  



Building Record for: 
Sacred Heart Convert, Dagenham, Essex.  

	

	 	 Touchstone	Archaeology		46	

	Figure	37	-	original	door	handle	(ground	floor	only)		
	

		
	

	

	

	

	

		
	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

		
	

	

	

	

	

Figure	38	-	detailing	of	panelling	in	main	rooms	on	ground	floor		
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Figure	39	-	chapel	-	location	of	Alter		
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Figure	43	-	front	boundary	wall		

	

			
	
		

	

	

	

	

	

Figure	44	-	front	boundary	wall		
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Figure	45	-	masonry	which	formally	held	a	statue	and	plaque		

	

	

	

		

	

	

	

	

Figure	46	-	rear	of	above		
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 Appendix	3	–	Planning	History		14.

Property	History	

000100101100	|	Sacred	Heart	Convent	191	Goresbrook	Road	Dagenham	Essex	RM9	6XD		

	

Planning	Applications	(8)		

▪	Alteration	of	loft	to	provide	additional	sleeping	accommodation	at	Sacred	Heart	

Convent,	Ref.	No:	62/00143/DAG	|	Status:	Application	Permitted		

▪	Erection	of	Marley	Concrete	Garage	as	garden	shed,	Ref.	No:	64/00301/DAG	|	Status:	

Application	Permitted		

▪	Erection	of	garage	building	to	house	minibus,	Ref.	No:	75/00436/TP	|	Status:	

Application	Permitted		

▪	Erection	of	detached	garage,	Ref.	No:	80/00589/TP	|	Status:	Application	Permitted		

▪	Erection	of	rear	lift	extension,	Ref.	No:	92/00370/TP	|	Status:	Application	Permitted		

▪	Erection	of	two	storey	building	with	mezzanine	to	provide	additional	accommodation	

for	existing	education	and	training	centre,	Ref.	No:	96/00029/TP	|	Status:	Application	

Permitted		

▪	Demolition	of	convent	and	erection	of	20	semi-detached	houses	comprising	16	three	

bed	houses	and	4	two	bed	houses	plus	associated	landscape	works	including	

construction	of	new	access	road,	removal	and	replacement	of	trees	and	new	boundary	

treatment,	Ref.	No:	13/00624/FUL	|	Status:	Application	Refused		
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▪	Erection	of	two	storey	side	and	rear	extension	with	accommodation	in	roof	and	

remodelling	of	front	and	rear	dormer	windows	in	connection	with	conversion	of	existing	

building	to	provide	60	bedroom	elderly	persons	care	home,	together	with	extension	to	

car	park	and	widening	of	car	park	access,	Ref.	No:	15/01423/FUL	|	Status:	Application	

Permitted		

Planning	Appeals	(1)		

▪	Demolition	of	convent	and	erection	of	20	semi-detached	houses	comprising	16	three	

bed	houses	and	4	two	bed	houses	plus	associated	landscape	works	including	

construction	of	new	access	road,	removal	and	replacement	of	trees	and	new	boundary	

treatment,	Ref.	No:	13/00030/REFUSL	|	Status:	Appeal	Dismissed		

Building	Control	Applications	(3)		

▪	Lift	installation,	Ref.	No:	93/00030/BC	|	Status:	Building	Work	Started		

▪	Replacement	windows,	Ref.	No:	06/02133/FENSA	|	Status:	No	Decision	Required		

▪	air	conditioning	system	with	associated	controls,	Ref.	No:	14/01190/BESCA	|	Status:	

Building	Work	Complete		
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 Appendix	4	–	Decision	Summary	15.

http://www.heritagegateway.org.uk/Gateway/Results_Single.aspx?resourceID=5&

uid=1417928		

This	building	has	been	assessed	under	the	Planning	(Listed	Buildings	and	Conservation	

Areas)	Act	1990	as	amended	for	its	special	architectural	or	historic	interest.	The	asset	

currently	does	not	meet	the	criteria	for	listing.	It	is	not	listed	under	the	Planning	(Listed	

Buildings	and	Conservation	Areas)	Act	1990	as	amended.		

Name:	Sacred	Heart	Convent,	Dagenham	

Reference	Number:	1417928	

Location	

Sacred	Heart	Convent,	Goresbrook	Road,	Dagenham,	RM9	6XD		

The	building	may	lie	within	the	boundary	of	more	than	one	authority.	County:	Greater	

London	Authority	

District:	Barking	and	Dagenham	

District	Type:	London	Borough		

Parish:	Non	Civil	Parish		

National	Park:	Not	applicable	to	this	List	entry.	Decision	Date:	06-Nov-2013	

Description	

Reasons	for	currently	not	Listing	the	Building		

CONTEXT		

English	Heritage	has	been	asked	to	assess	the	Sacred	Heart	Convent,	Goresbrook	Road,	

Dagenham	for	listing.	The	building	is	no	longer	in	use	as	a	convent.	A	planning	

application	was	recently	submitted	for	the	demolition	of	the	convent	and	the	erection	

of	20	semi-detached	house	on	the	site.	However,	according	to	the	Barking	and	
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Dagenham	Post	of	Tuesday	15th	October	consent	was	refused	for	this	scheme	on	14th	

October.		

The	building	does	not	adjoin	any	listed	buildings	and	is	not	situated	within	a	designated	

conservation	area.	It	lies	to	the	north	of	an	Archaeological	Priority	Area.		

HISTORY	AND	DETAILS		

The	Society	of	the	Sacred	Heart	was	founded	by	Saint	Madeline	Sophie	Barat	(1779-

1865)	as	a	teaching	order	which	was	international	and	came	to	England	in	1842.	This	

building	was	constructed	in	the	1920s	or	early	1930s,	probably	by	an	architect	working	

for	the	Roman	Catholic	diocese,	when	the	Ford	Motor	works	moved	from	Manchester	

to	Dagenham	in	the	late	1920s.	In	the	1930s	these	motor	works	were	the	largest	motor	

works	in	Europe	and	the	convent	was	established	to	serve	the	workers	and	their	

families,	many	of	them	residents	on	the	Becontree	estate	and	Roman	Catholic.		

The	architect	has	not	been	identified.	The	convent	is	built	in	a	neo-Georgian	style	in	a	

mixture	of	red	and	plum	coloured	bricks	in	English	bond	with	a	hipped	tiled	roof	and	

brick	chimneys.	The	principal	front	faces	north	and	is	of	two	storeys	with	a	massive	C20	

continuous	dormer	and	consists	of	13	bays,	the	end	two	bays	on	either	side	projecting	

under	a	hipped	roof.	The	central	bay	has	a	small	louvered	cupola	on	the	roof.	There	is	a	

wooden	modillion	cornice,	tripartite	sash	window	to	the	central	bay	of	the	first	floor	and	

a	wooden	door	case	with	swans	neck	pediment	and	receded	pilasters.	The	other	first	

floor	windows	have	12	panes	and	the	central	part	has	taller	ground	floor	windows	with	

15	panes.	This	elevation	is	not	quite	symmetrical	because	the	projecting	section	to	the	

west	has	tall	round-headed	windows.	The	east	side	has	an	external	chimneystack	and	a	

later	C20	flat-roofed	lift	shaft	projecting	through	the	roof.	A	glazed	corridor	links	to	a	

single	storey	building	with	a	flat	roof	and	sash	window.	The	south	side	of	the	main	

building	has	the	central	9	bays	projecting	forward	and	there	is	a	later	C20	continuous	

dormer	above.	A	late	C20	three	storey	single	bay	tower	in	a	paler	brick	has	been	added	
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to	the	east	side.	No	details	about	the	interior	were	supplied	but	the	Royal	Institute	of	

British	Architects	has	a	photograph	of	an	oak	staircase	with	turned	balusters,	moulded	

cylindrical	newel	post	and	fielded	dado	panelling.		

Fronting	Goresbrook	Road	is	a	contemporary	brick	boundary	wall	with	brick	piers	at	

regular	intervals	infilled	by	cast	iron	railings.	The	two	central	piers	are	surmounted	by	

stone	cornices	and	ball	finials.	The	convent	garden	has	a	typical	Catholic	devotional	

stone	statue	on	a	plinth.		

CRITERIA/ASSESSMENT		

The	Principles	of	Selection	for	Listing	Buildings	(March	2010)	sets	out	the	broad	criteria	

when	buildings	are	considered	for	designation.	Before	1700,	all	buildings	that	contain	a	

significant	proportion	of	their	original	fabric	are	listed;	from	1700	to	1840,	most	

buildings	are	listed;	after	1840,	because	of	the	greatly	increased	number	of	buildings	

erected	and	the	much	larger	numbers	that	have	survived,	progressively	greater	

selection	is	necessary.	Convents	are	referred	to	in	the	English	Heritage	Listing	Selection	

Guide	for	Places	of	Worship	(April	2011)	where	intactness	and	historic	interest	are	

stated	to	be	key.		

However	as	the	Society	of	the	Sacred	Heart	were	a	teaching	order	and	this	building	was	

probably	used	for	teaching,	it	should	also	be	assessed	under	the	English	Heritage	Listing	

Selection	Guide	for	Education	Buildings	(April	2011),	and	in	style	it	is	not	unlike	many	

state	secondary	schools	of	the	period.	The	criteria	for	educational	buildings	state	that	

for	schools	of	between	1914	and	1945	architectural	quality	should	be	balanced	with	

intactness	and	that	design	standards	could	sometimes	be	high	but	could	equally	veer	

towards	the	bland.	Many	schools	were	built	in	a	standardised	neo-	Georgian	idiom.	

Overall	composition	and	good	quality	brickwork	are	of	importance	and	good	internal	

features	can	make	all	the	difference.		



Building Record for: 
Sacred Heart Convert, Dagenham, Essex.  

	

	 	 Touchstone	Archaeology		61	

This	building	is	constructed	of	good	quality	brickwork	but	it	is	designed	in	a	standardised	

neo-	Georgian	idiom.	The	overall	composition	is	bland	with	a	very	small	cupola	and	fairly	

standard	design	door	case	to	the	principal	entrance.	The	symmetry	of	the	principal	front	

is	broken	by	windows	of	a	different	pattern	on	one	side	of	the	entrance	front.	The	oak	

staircase	and	adjoining	dado	panelling	appear	typical	and	representative	of	the	period.		

Although	in	use	as	a	convent	there	is	no	evidence	of	an	association	with	a	leading	cleric,	

architect,	patron	or	a	development	of	worship	here.		

The	north	and	south	sides	have	been	disfigured	by	a	very	large	late	C20	continuous	

dormer,	the	south	side	by	a	late	C20	three	storey	tower	and	the	east	side	by	a	flat-

roofed	lift	shaft.		

Therefore	judged	against	the	published	listing	criteria,	the	Sacred	Heart	Convent,	

Dagenham	does	not	merit	listing	for	the	following	principal	reasons:		

*	Architectural	interest:	although	built	of	good	quality	brickwork	the	composition	is	

bland	and	lacks	symmetry	with	standard	fittings	for	the	period;		

*	Historic	interest:	lack	of	evidence	of	association	with	a	leading	cleric,	architect,	patron	

or	a	development	of	worship;		

*	Degree	of	alteration:	very	large	late	C20	continuous	dormers	on	the	front	and	back	

and	protruding	lift	shaft	and	additional	staircase.		

CONCLUSION		

The	Sacred	Heart	Convent,	Dagenham	does	not	meet	the	criteria	for	statutory	listing	but	

it	is	clearly	of	local	interest.		

National	Grid	Reference:	TQ4839583781		
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This	copy	shows	the	entry	on	17-Jul-2018	at	01:51:27.		

 Appendix	5	–	Victorian	County	History		16.

Dagenham:	Churches,	schools	and	charities	Pages	294-302		

A	History	of	the	County	of	Essex:	Volume	5.	Originally	published	by	Victoria	County	

History,	London,	1966.		

'Dagenham:	Churches,	schools	and	charities',	in	A	History	of	the	County	of	Essex:	

Volume	5,	ed.	W	R	Powell	(London,	1966),	pp.	294-302.	British	History	Online	

http://www.british-	history.ac.uk/vch/essex/vol5/pp294-302	[accessed	17	July	2018].		

http://www.british-history.ac.uk/vch/essex/vol5/pp294-302		

CHURCHES.		

The	earliest	known	reference	to	the	church	of	Dagenham	was	in	1205,	when	Baldwin	

'the	chaplain'	was	involved	in	a	dispute	concerning	church	land.	(fn.	1)	Architectural	

evidence	suggests	that	the	church	of	St.	Peter	and	St.	Paul	was	built	early	in	the	13th	

century.	By	c.	1254	it	had	been	appropriated	to	Barking	Abbey	and	a	vicarage	ordained.	

(fn.	2)	The	abbey	held	the	rectory	and	advowson	until	1539,	though	the	last	

presentation	before	the	dissolution	was	by	Edward	North	and	George	Hadley	for	one	

turn,	early	in	1539.	(fn.	3)	In	1540	William	Pownsett,	of	Loxford	in	Ilford,	(fn.	4)	

presented	for	one	turn.	Subsequent	presentations,	up	to	1557,	were	made	by	the	

Crown.	In	1558,	shortly	before	her	death,	Mary	granted	the	advowson	to	the	Bishop	of	

London,	as	part	of	a	scheme	for	augmenting	poor	benefices.	(fn.	5)	The	scheme	

evidently	lapsed	on	the	accession	of	Elizabeth	I,	and	the	advowson	was	subsequently	

granted	along	with	the	rectory	and	the	manor	of	Cockermouth	(fn.	6)	to	Sir	Anthony	

Browne.	The	advowson	descended	with	Cockermouth	until	the	end	of	the	17th	century.	
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(fn.	7)	Only	one	of	the	lords	of	Cockermouth	presented	to	the	vicarage	before	the	Civil	

War:	William	Nutbrowne	in	1579.	Ralph	Ward	presented	for	one	turn	in	1617.	In	1637,	

and	twice	in	1641,	the	bishop	presented,	perhaps	because	of	the	lunacy	of	John	Darcy,	

lord	of	Cockermouth,	and	the	minority	of	his	successor	(Sir)	Thomas	Darcy.	During	the	

Interregnum	presentations	were	made	by	Sir	Thomas	Honeywood,	as	guardian	of	(Sir)	

Thomas	Darcy,	and	later	by	Darcy	himself.	(fn.	8)	The	advowson	was	held	by	Darcy	until	

his	death	in	1693,	and	later	by	his	son	Sir	George	(d.	1698).	It	was	sold	about	1700	by	Sir	

George	Darcy's	three	sisters	and	co-heirs,	apparently	to	Samuel	Kekewich,	vicar	of	

Rainham,	who	presented	in	1704.	(fn.	9)		

The	next	presentation	was	made	in	1719	by	William	Blackborne,	who	is	said	to	have	

inherited	the	advowson	from	the	Revd.	John	Brett.	Blackborne	presented	again	in	1737	

and	1739.	(fn.	10)	The	next	presentation,	of	Edward	Chaplin	in	1798,	was	made	by	

Thomas	Thoreton.	(fn.	11)	Chaplin	later	acquired	the	advowson	and	sold	it	to	Mrs.	Sarah	

Bonynge,	a	relative	of	the	Fanshawes	of	Parsloes.	(fn.	12)	On	her	death	in	1832	she	left	

it	to	her	nephew,	Thomas	L.	Fanshawe,	whom	she	had	presented	to	the	vicarage	in	

1816.	(fn.	13)	In	1854	the	advowson	was	bought	from	Fanshawe	by	a	sister	of	the	Revd.	

Robert	Bewick,	who	presented	him	in	1857.	(fn.	14)	Before	1861	it	was	again	sold,	to	the	

Revd.	John	Farmer,	who	presented	himself	in	that	year.	(fn.	15)	In	1876	Thomas	C.	

Moore	presented	his	son,	the	Revd.	John	J.	S.	Moore.	(fn.	16)	The	advowson	descended	

to	John	J.	S.	Moore's	son	Stewart,	who	sold	it	in	1918	to	George	W.	Bennett.	Bennett	

sold	it	in	the	same	year	to	the	Church	Association	(now	Society)	Trust,	the	present	

(1962)	owners.	(fn.	17)		

In	1538	Barking	Abbey	leased	the	rectory	of	Dagenham,	along	with	the	manor	of	

Cockermouth,	(fn.	18)	to	Nicholas	Howe.	Between	1560	and	1564	Sir	Anthony	Browne	

(d.	1567)	acquired	the	rectory	and	the	manor.	By	his	will	he	left	the	rectory	to	his	

foundation	of	Brentwood	School,	providing	that	the	then	lessee,	his	servant	John	Lytell,	

should	pay	£24	rent	for	20	years,	after	which	the	school	was	to	have	absolute	
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possession.	(fn.	19)	The	will	was	proved	in	1567,	but	the	school	had	to	obtain	a	

Chancery	decree	before	gaining	possession	of	the	property,	in	1573,	from	Sir	Anthony's	

heir,	Wistan	Browne.	(fn.	20)	The	school	continued	the	practice	of	leasing.	From	1647	

until	1823	the	lessees	were	successive	members	of	the	Fanshawe	family	of	Parsloes.	

Until	1803	they	paid	small	annual	rents	and	large	fines	on	the	renewal	of	leases.	In	1803	

the	Tower	family,	as	patrons	of	Brentwood	School,	began	to	rack-rent	the	great	tithes.	

In	1811	they	became	involved	with	the	Fanshawes	in	a	long	legal	battle	concerning	the	

tithes	of	vegetables.	(fn.	21)	The	cause	of	the	dispute	seems	to	have	been	twofold.	

During	the	previous	twenty	years	there	had	been	a	considerable	growth	of	market	

gardening	in	Dagenham.	The	tithes	of	vegetables	thus	became	valuable,	and	the	Towers	

claimed	them	as	great	tithes.	The	Fanshawes,	if	they	had	been	merely	lessees	of	the	

great	tithes,	would	have	had	no	reason	to	oppose	this	claim,	but	they	were	also	lessees	

of	the	small	tithes	and,	more	important,	patrons	of	the	vicarage.	In	1816,	while	the	

battle	was	still	going	on,	Thomas	Fanshawe	became	vicar.	Between	1811	and	1840	the	

Towers	brought	a	series	of	unsuccessful	suits	against	the	Fanshawes.		

In	1824	payment	of	tithes	was	again	in	dispute.	The	Towers'	patronage	of	Brentwood	

School	was	challenged	by	Capt.	Charles	Combers,	who	claimed	it	himself	as	heir	to	Sir	

Anthony	Browne.	Both	parties	appealed	to	Dagenham	landowners	and	the	parish	vestry	

resolved	to	request	the	Lord	Chancellor	to	appoint	a	third	party	to	receive	the	tithes	

until	the	dispute	was	settled.	Thomas	Twyford	of	Triptons,	a	prominent	vestryman	and	

supporter	of	the	Towers'	claims,	asserted	that	the	landowners	were	taking	advantage	of	

the	dispute	to	withhold	tithes.	(fn.	22)	The	Towers	remained	in	control	of	the	school	

until	its	reform	in	1851.	(fn.	23)		

In	c.	1254	the	rectory	and	vicarage	were	together	valued	at	£20.	(fn.	24)	In	1291	the	

rectory	was	valued	at	£13	6s.	8d.	(fn.	25)	In	1567	the	great	tithes	were	being	leased	for	

£24.	(fn.	26)	The	rent	was	subsequently	increased	to	£28	(by	1627),	and	to	£40	(from	

1647),	at	which	figure	it	remained	until	1764,	when	it	was	raised	to	£140.	(fn.	27)	Even	



Building Record for: 
Sacred Heart Convert, Dagenham, Essex.  

	

	 	 Touchstone	Archaeology		65	

in	the	17th	century	these	rents	were	much	less	than	the	full	value	of	the	tithes.	In	1650	

the	rectory	was	valued	at	£90.	(fn.	28)	By	the	end	of	the	18th	century	the	rent	

represented	only	about	one-eighth	of	the	full	value.	By	then	the	lessors	were	taking	

much	of	their	profit	in	the	form	of	fines,	of	which	little	is	known,	for	renewal	of	the	

leases.	(fn.	29)		

In	1803	the	great	tithes	were	rack-rented	at	£1,115,	a	sum	probably	inflated	by	the	high	

food	prices	then	prevailing.	(fn.	30)	In	1844	the	great	tithes	were	commuted	for	£1,036.	

(fn.	31)		

The	vicarage	was	valued	at	£2	in	1291	and	at	£19	19s.	10d.	in	1535.	(fn.	32)	In	1650	it	

was	valued	at	£80,	of	which	£26	10s.	represented	tithes	and	the	remainder	the	house	

and	3	a.	glebe.	(fn.	33)	About	that	time	the	vicarage	was	temporarily	augmented	by	the	

Committee	for	Plundered	Ministers,	which	arranged	that	John	Fanshawe,	lessee	of	the	

great	tithes,	who	was	a	royalist	'delinquent',	should	be	excused	part	of	his	fine	on	

condition	that	he	settled	£40	a	year	for	21	years	on	the	vicarage.	(fn.	34)	In	1829–31	the	

average	gross	income	of	the	vicarage	was	£800.	(fn.	35)	In	1844	the	small	tithes	were	

commuted	for	£850.	There	were	then	5	a.	glebe:	(fn.	36)	this,	which	lay	north	of	the	

church,	is	now	a	sports	field.	(fn.	37)	The	vicarage	house,	in	Crown	Street,	is	a	timber-

framed	building,	the	rear	part	of	which	dates	from	the	early	17th	century.	The	front	was	

rebuilt	in	1665,	the	date	being	placed	on	the	porch.	A	painting	of	1879	shows	the	house	

before	modern	alterations.	(fn.	38)		

In	or	about	1536	Thomas	Hunting	or	Huntingdon	gave	a	rent-charge	of	£3	6s.	8d.	to	

support	a	chantry	priest	in	Dagenham	for	19	years.	This	chantry	was	dissolved	in	1548.	

(fn.	39)	Dagenham	also	benefited	from	the	occasional	services	of	the	priest	of	

Cornburgh's	chantry	at	Romford,	established	in	1486.	(fn.	40)		

Between	the	Reformation	and	the	early	19th	century	the	vicars	of	Dagenham	were	

often	nonresident,	sometimes	because	they	were	pluralists.	(fn.	41)	An	assistant	curate	
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is	recorded	occasionally	before	the	17th	century	and	frequently	in	the	18th.	(fn.	42)	

Charles	Trew,	instituted	in	1641,	was	ejected	in	1643.	(fn.	43)	The	Committee	for	

Plundered	Ministers	proposed	to	replace	him	by	John	Bowyer,	who	since	1642	had	been	

lecturer	at	Dagenham,	(fn.	44)	but	after	local	opposition	appointed	Henry	Coleman.	In	

1645–6	Coleman	was	in	trouble	with	the	committee	for	failing	to	pay	Mrs.	Trew	the	

'fifths'	to	which	she	was	entitled.	He	appears	to	have	left	Dagenham	in	1647,	and	was	

succeeded	by	Bowyer	(d.	1650),	George	Walker	(d.	1651),	and	Jonathan	Lloyd	(d.	1654).	

Lloyd	was	followed	in	1655	by	Frederick	Tilney.	By	that	time	Charles	Trew	was	dead.	

Tilney	therefore	retained	the	vicarage	at	the	Restoration,	and	he	conformed	in	1662.		

The	ancient	parish	church	of	ST.	PETER	AND	ST.	PAUL,	in	Crown	Street,	consists	of	nave,	

chancel,	north	chapel	and	west	tower.	The	chancel	and	chapel	are	all	that	remain	of	the	

medieval	building.	The	tower	collapsed	in	1800,	destroying	the	nave	and	south	aisle.	The	

tower	and	nave	were	rebuilt	between	1801	and	1805.		

The	chancel	was	built	early	in	the	13th	century.	It	has	three	lancet	windows	of	that	

period	in	the	east	wall	and	two	others,	much	restored,	in	the	south	wall.	Two	other	

south	windows,	and	the	north	arcade,	are	of	the	15th	century.	The	north	chapel	also	

dates	from	the	15th	century.	It	was	probably	the	'new	aisle	or	chapel'	mentioned	in	

1475.	(fn.	45)	Its	east	wall	was	rebuilt	in	the	18th	century.	A	painting	of	the	church	from	

the	south-east,	made	about	1770,	shows	a	crenellated	west	tower	with	square	corner	

turret,	and	15th-century	windows.	The	east	window	of	the	south	aisle	had	13th-	century	

lancets	similar	to	those	in	the	chancel.	There	was	a	square-headed	window,	possibly	of	

the	late	15th	century,	in	the	south	wall	of	the	aisle.	(fn.	46)		

Substantial	repairs	and	alterations	to	the	church	were	carried	out	between	1580	and	

1630.	(fn.	47)	These	included	the	conversion	of	the	north	chapel	into	a	vestry	which	was	

called	the	'rector's	chancel'.	For	more	than	a	century	after	that	there	were	only	minor	

repairs.	About	1770,	however,	the	church,	and	especially	the	tower,	was	found	to	be	

dangerously	decayed.	After	spending	over	£1,100	on	ineffective	repairs	the	vestry	
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decided,	in	1797,	to	rebuild	the	tower	and	parts	of	the	south	aisle.	The	work	was	

delayed	and	late	in	1800	the	tower	fell,	wrecking	the	nave	and	south	aisle	and	damaging	

the	chancel	arch.	The	rebuilding	of	the	nave	and	tower	was	immediately	put	in	hand,	

but	owing	to	financial	difficulties	was	not	completed	until	1805.	(fn.	48)	The	new	work	

was	carried	out	in	stone	rubble,	using	old	material,	and	brown	brick.	The	nave,	from	

which	the	former	south	aisle	has	been	omitted,	has	quatrefoil	and	pointed	windows	

and,	like	the	tower,	an	unusual	curved	and	embattled	parapet.	The	tower,	said	to	be	'of	

the	most	ignorant	and	entertaining	Gothick',	(fn.	49)	originally	had	a	spire,	but	this	was	

removed	in	1921.	(fn.	50)	The	semi-circular	west	porch,	supported	on	clustered	stone	

shafts,	is	flanked	by	pointed	niches	and	surmounted	by	an	arch	inscribed	'Wm.	Mason	

Archt.	1800'.	An	internal	restoration	of	the	church	was	carried	out	in	1878.	A	13th-

century	piscina	and	an	altar	slab	found	during	the	restoration	were	replaced	in	the	

chancel.	(fn.	51)		

In	the	chancel	are	two	17th-century	funeral	helms	and	two	pairs	of	gauntlets,	one	of	

which	holds	a	sword.	There	is	a	17th-century	chest	in	the	north	chapel.	In	the	nave	are	

tablets	recording	Waters's	charity	and	Ford's	endowed	school.	Details	of	the	parish	

charities	are	also	recorded	in	the	west	gallery.	The	west	gallery	and	font	date	from	the	

rebuilding	of	1801–5.	(fn.	52)	Before	1800	there	were	five	bells.	A	peal	of	six	were	cast	

(or	re-cast)	in	1804	by	Thomas	Mears.	These	were	re-cast	and	re-hung	in	1933.	(fn.	53)	

The	church	plate	includes	a	silver	gilt	cup	of	1598,	probably	given	to	the	church	after	

1683.	There	are	also	a	cup	and	paten	of	1678,	a	flagon	of	1755,	an	almsdish	of	c.	1700,	

and	another	of	1729.	(fn.	54)		

On	the	north	side	of	the	chancel	is	the	altar	tomb	of	Sir	Thomas	Urswick	of	Marks	(d.	

1479),	(fn.	55)	with	brasses	of	him	and	his	wife	and	nine	daughters,	and	an	indent	once	

containing	his	four	sons.	(fn.	56)	On	the	south	wall	of	the	chancel	is	a	slab	to	Jacob	

Uphill	(d.	1662)	and	members	of	his	family,	erected	in	1707.	(fn.	57)	In	the	north	chapel	



Building Record for: 
Sacred Heart Convert, Dagenham, Essex.  

	

	 	 Touchstone	Archaeology		68	

are	an	elaborate	marble	monument	to	Sir	Richard	Alibon	(d.	1688),	(fn.	58)	and	slabs	to	

James	Hervey	(d.	1627),	and	Jonathan	Lloyd,	vicar	(d.	1654).	(fn.	59)		

Nathaniel	Rogers,	by	his	will	proved	in	1884,	left	£20	for	the	repair	of	his	grandfather's	

and	greatuncle's	tombstones,	any	surplus	to	be	spent	on	other	tombstones	and	on	

books	for	divine	service.	(fn.	60)		

Although	Dagenham	was	a	large	and	scattered	parish	there	was	apparently	no	Anglican	

place	of	worship,	other	than	the	church,	until	the	end	of	the	19th	century.	(fn.	61)	About	

1880	the	vicar,	J.	S.	Moore,	began	to	hold	services	at	Chadwell	Heath,	and	in	1886	the	

church	of	ST.	CHAD	was	opened	there	as	a	chapel-of-ease	to	the	parish	church.	In	1895	

the	new	parish	of	Chadwell	Heath	was	formed,	comprising	Chadwell	Heath	and	Marks	

Gate,	in	Dagenham,	and	part	of	Chadwell	Street	in	Ilford.	The	advowson	of	the	vicarage	

was	vested	alternately	in	the	vicars	of	Dagenham	and	Great	Ilford.	(fn.	62)	The	building,	

of	red	brick	with	stone	dressings,	consists	of	aisled	nave,	chancel,	and	embattled	north-

west	tower.	In	1956	the	church	of	ST.	MARK,	in	Rose	Lane,	Marks	Gate,	was	built	as	a	

district	church	of	Chadwell	Heath;	(fn.	63)	it	is	designed	for	use	also	as	a	church	hall.	

There	was	a	mission	room	at	Becontree	Heath	in	c.	1890–4.	(fn.	64)		

The	first	church	built	for	the	Becontree	estate	was	that	of	St.	Thomas,	Burnside	Road,	

Ilford.	(fn.	65)	The	parish	assigned	to	St.	Thomas's	in	1922	comprised	the	whole	of	the	

estate,	in	Dagenham,	Ilford,	and	Barking,	but	this	was	subsequently	sub-divided	as	other	

new	parishes	were	formed.	The	church	of	ST.	MARTIN,	Goresbrook	Road,	was	opened	in	

1925;	the	present	building,	dating	from	1931–2,	is	of	red	brick	in	a	modern	

'Perpendicular'	style	and	consists	of	aisled	nave,	chancel,	Lady	chapel,	porches	and	

vestries.	(fn.	66)	The	advowson	of	the	vicarage	is	held	by	the	Bishop	of	Chelmsford.	(fn.	

67)		

The	church	of	ST.	MARY,	Grafton	Road,	was	opened	in	1927.	In	1935	a	permanent	

building	was	erected	and	to	this	were	transferred	the	endowments	of	Ram's	episcopal	
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chapel,	Homerton	(in	Hackney,	Mdx.),	together	with	the	organ	and	communion	plate	

from	the	chapel.	The	church,	designed	by	Welch,	Cachemaille-Day	and	Lander,	is	a	

roughcast	building	with	brick	window-tracery,	consisting	of	nave,	north	aisle,	and	

uncompleted	central	tower,	the	base	of	which	is	now	used	as	a	chancel.	The	advowson	

of	the	vicarage	is	held	by	the	Church	Pastoral	Aid	Society.	(fn.	68)		

The	church	of	ST.	GEORGE,	Rogers	Road,	was	opened	in	1929.	The	present	building,	

erected	in	1935	when	a	new	parish	was	formed,	is	of	brown	brick	and	consists	of	a	nave	

with	passage	aisles	and	a	chancel	flanked	by	chapels.	The	advowson	of	the	vicarage	is	

held	by	the	Bishop	of	Chelmsford.	(fn.	69)		

The	church	of	ST.	PETER,	Warrington	Road,	was	opened	in	1931.	A	new	brick	chancel,	

with	Lady	chapel	and	vestries,	was	erected	in	1958	and	the	old	roughcast	building	now	

forms	the	nave	of	the	church.	The	advowson	of	the	vicarage	is	held	by	the	Bishop	of	

Chelmsford.	(fn.	70)	The	churches	of	St.	Alban,	Urswick	Road,	St.	Cedd,	Lodge	Avenue,	

St.	Elisabeth,	Wood	Lane,	and	St.	John,	Goresbrook	Road,	all	of	which	serve	the	

Becontree	estate,	are	treated	under	Barking.	(fn.	71)		

ROMAN	CATHOLICISM.	(fn.	72)		

The	Roman	Catholics	were	the	first	religious	body	to	begin	work	on	the	Becontree	

estate.	Their	first	church,	that	of	St.	Vincent,	was	at	the	northern	end	of	the	estate,	in	

Ilford.	(fn.	73)	In	1926	the	Revd.	J.	Petit,	now	Bishop	of	Menevia,	established	the	mission	

of	ST.	PETER,	in	Goresbrook	Road,	for	south	Dagenham.	This	was	taken	over	in	1928	by	

the	missionaries	of	La	Salette.	The	present	church	hall	was	in	use	for	worship	by	1929	

and	a	permanent	brick	church,	built	on	a	basilican	plan,	was	opened	in	1937.	A	mission	

for	the	central	area	of	the	estate	was	established	in	1928,	and	the	church	of	THE	HOLY	

FAMILY,	Oxlow	Lane,	was	opened	in	1934.	The	Barking	side	of	the	estate	is	served	by	the	

churches	of	St.	Thomas	More	and	St.	Anne.	(fn.	74)	Hainault	is	served	by	the	church	of	

The	Assumption,	in	Chigwell.	(fn.	75)		
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PROTESTANT	NONCONFORMITY.		

Puritan	activity	in	Dagenham	during	the	Commonwealth	(fn.	76)	does	not	seem	to	have	

led	to	the	formation	of	any	nonconformist	congregation	there	after	the	Restoration.	

Individual	dissenters	certainly	existed.	In	1665	a	Dagenham	man	was	prosecuted	in	the	

archdeacon's	court	as	a	Quaker.	(fn.	77)	He	may	have	been	a	member	of	the	Barking	

meeting.	(fn.	78)		

Churches	founded	before	1921.		

Samuel	Wilson	(d.	1727),	minister	of	a	Presbyterian	chapel	at	Havering	Well,	in	Romford,	

lived	at	Dagenham.	(fn.	79)	Some	of	his	congregation	probably	did	also.	In	1766	there	

were	said	to	be	'many	Presbyterians'	in	the	parish,	(fn.	80)	and	in	1794	the	house	of	

Samuel	Waters	was	licensed	by	E.	Cornell	for	Independent	worship.	(fn.	81)	The	first	

permanent	congregation	was,	however,	one	of	Wesleyan	Methodists.	According	to	local	

tradition	this	originated	about	1770,	(fn.	82)	but	the	first	certain	reference	to	it	was	in	

1800,	when	the	house	of	James	Richardson	was	licensed	for	Independent	worship.	(fn.	

83)	Other	evidence	shows	that	this	was	a	Methodist	meeting	and	that	it	was	due	to	the	

initiative	of	Henry	Attely,	a	wheelwright,	whose	religious	activities	were	opposed	by	the	

local	squire,	J.	G.	Fanshawe	of	Parsloes.	(fn.	84)	By	1829	there	were	two	Methodist	

societies	in	the	parish.	The	larger,	with	46	members,	met	in	a	newly-built	chapel	at	

Becontree	Heath.	The	smaller,	which	used	a	licensed	house,	probably	in	Dagenham	

village,	had	16	members.	Both	were	in	the	Romford	section	of	the	Spitalfields	circuit.	

(fn.	85)	The	Becontree	Heath	chapel	was	visited	in	1831	by	Elizabeth	Fry.	(fn.	86)	It	was	

certainly	the	first	Methodist	chapel	in	Dagenham,	and	the	society	there	probably	goes	

back	to	the	work	of	Attely	in	1800.	A	map	of	c.	1844	shows	the	chapel	on	the	south	side	

of	Wood	Lane.	(fn.	87)	By	1852	Becontree	Heath	had	seceded	from	the	Wesleyan	

connexion	and	was	included	in	the	Wesleyan	Reform	Third	London	Circuit.	(fn.	88)	This	

chapel,	like	Ebenezer	in	Bull	Street	(see	below),	later	joined	the	United	Methodist	Free	

Church.	The	two	chapels	were	closely	connected:	in	1860,	on	the	same	day,	new	
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licences	were	taken	out	for	them	both.	Those	two	licences	were	cancelled	in	1875,	

when	a	new	U.M.F.C.	chapel	was	opened	at	Becontree	Heath.	(fn.	89)	It	is	therefore	

probable	that	in	1875	the	two	congregations	united	in	the	new	building,	now	Becontree	

Heath	Methodist	church,	which	stands	on	the	north	side	of	Wood	Lane,	and	that	

Ebenezer	was	then	closed.		

Ebenezer	chapel,	in	Bull	Street	(now	Rainham	Road	South)	was	built	in	1846	and	

licensed	by	Thomas	Smith,	in	face	of	opposition	from	the	vicar,	T.	L.	Fanshawe.	(fn.	90)	

About	1850	it	seceded	from	the	Wesleyan	connexion	in	sympathy	with	the	Wesleyan	

Reformers.	(fn.	91)	Those	continuing	to	support	the	old	connexion	therefore	left	

Ebenezer,	under	the	leadership	of	George	Flowers,	a	baker,	and	built	another	chapel	

nearby	(see	below).	The	probable	later	history	of	Ebenezer,	up	to	1875,	has	already	

been	described.	The	building	appears	to	have	been	used,	after	1875,	by	a	mission	which	

gave	rise	to	the	Dagenham	Free	church	(see	below).	It	is	a	small	yellow-brick	building	on	

the	west	side	of	the	road,	opposite	the	present	Methodist	church.	(fn.	92)		

Those	who	remained	in	the	old	Wesleyan	connexion	in	c.	1850,	and	therefore	left	

Ebenezer,	worshipped	at	first	in	cottages,	but	by	1854	had	built	a	chapel	opposite	

Ebenezer,	in	the	same	street.	This	was	rebuilt	in	1888.	(fn.	93)	It	was	demolished	for	

road-widening	in	1958:	a	new	building,	to	the	south	of	the	former	church	hall,	was	

opened	in	1962.	(fn.	94)	It	is	called	Old	Dagenham	Methodist	church.		

In	1821	a	house	at	Chadwell	Heath	was	licensed	for	Wesleyans.	(fn.	95)	There	are	no	

later	references	to	this.	A	Wesleyan	church	was	built	at	Chadwell	Heath	in	1907.	It	was	

closed	and	sold	in	1939.	(fn.	96)		

A	chapel	at	Marks	Gate,	which	was	at	first	Independent	(Congregational)	and	later	

Methodist,	was	built	in	1821	by	the	Village	Itinerancy	Society	to	serve	the	'poor	and	

demoralized	skirters	of	the	forest'.	(fn.	97)	In	its	early	years	it	had	a	Sunday	school.	(fn.	

98)	In	1882	it	was	reported	that	the	recent	opening	of	a	Wesleyan	chapel	at	Marks	Gate	
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had	caused	a	decline	in	attendance	at	the	Congregational	chapel.	(fn.	99)	Soon	after,	

and	certainly	not	later	than	1891,	the	Wesleyans	took	over	the	old	chapel.	Services	

there	were	suspended	at	the	outbreak	of	war	in	1939	and	were	never	resumed.	(fn.	

100)	The	chapel,	which	is	now	(1962)	disused,	is	a	brown-brick	building,	with	a	cottage	

attached,	at	the	junction	of	Billet	Lane	and	Whalebone	Lane	North.	The	site	of	the	

original	Wesleyan	church	at	Marks	Gate	is	not	known.		

A	Baptist	chapel,	with	a	congregation	of	50	and	S.	Kendall	as	minister,	existed	in	

Dagenham	parish	in	1829.	(fn.	101)	This	was	almost	certainly	at	Chadwell	Heath,	where	

in	c.	1844	there	was	a	Baptist	chapel,	on	the	south	side	of	the	High	Road.	(fn.	102)	It	was	

probably	founded	by	Baptists	from	the	High	Road	church	at	Ilford,	during	the	ministry	

there	(1808–34)	of	James	Smith.	(fn.	103)	In	1847	T.	Kendall,	from	Ebenezer	Baptist	

church,	Ilford,	(fn.	104)	became	minister	at	Chadwell	Heath.	In	1860	Aenon	chapel	was	

built	in	Chadwell	Heath	Lane.	The	present	church,	on	the	south	side	of	High	Road,	was	

built	in	1905.	(fn.	105)		

A	Congregational	mission	was	opened	at	Chadwell	Heath	about	1885,	in	the	house	of	

the	Revd.	E.	J.	Newton.	(fn.	106)	The	present	church	in	Mill	Lane	was	built	in	1887.	(fn.	

107)		

In	1844	Francis	Glenny	built	a	meeting-house	and	school	(fn.	108)	for	Plymouth	Brethren	

at	Chadwell	Heath.	(fn.	109)	This	continued	in	use	until	1928	when	a	new	building	was	

opened	in	Wangey	Road.	(fn.	110)	The	original	meeting-house	is	a	yellow-brick	building	

now	(1962)	used	as	a	warehouse.	It	lies	at	the	end	of	Chapel	Lane,	about	100	yds.	east	

of	Station	Road.	The	yard	in	front	of	the	building	was	formerly	a	burial	ground.	(fn.	111)		

A	small	mission	existed	in	Dagenham	village	before	1921.	It	appears	to	have	used	the	

former	United	Methodist	Free	church	in	Bull	Street	(see	above).	It	gained	many	new	

members	during	the	next	ten	years	and	in	1931	moved	to	a	new	building	in	Charlotte	

Road	as	the	Dagenham	Evangelical	Free	church.	(fn.	112)		
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Churches	founded	since	1921.		

Thus,	when	building	started	on	the	Becontree	estate	there	were	8	nonconformist	

churches	in	Dagenham	parish:	4	at	Chadwell	Heath,	2	in	Dagenham	village,	one	at	

Becontree	Heath,	and	one	at	Marks	Gate.	The	last	of	these	was	two	miles	from	

Becontree.	Those	at	Chadwell	Heath,	though	nearer,	were	remote	from	the	greater	part	

of	the	estate,	and	like	those	at	Goodmayes,	in	Ilford,	(fn.	113)	were	unattractive	to	most	

of	the	new	inhabitants	of	Becontree	since	they	were	thought	to	be	middle-class	

institutions.	There	were	thus	only	three	nonconformist	churches,	none	of	them	large,	

that	were	well-placed	to	serve	the	estate.		

The	Wesleyan	Methodists	were	the	first	denomination	to	provide	new	churches.	(fn.	

114)	In	1925	they	opened	Becontree	Central	Hall	in	Bennetts	Castle	Lane,	Ilford.	(fn.	

115)	In	the	same	year	a	small	iron	church	was	opened	in	Heathway	which	in	1930	was	

replaced	by	Dagenham	Central	Hall.	These	great	central	halls	were	designed	for	a	wide	

range	of	social	functions,	and	were	a	notable	feature	of	early	Becontree.		

The	Baptists,	mainly	through	the	initiative	of	their	Essex	Extension	Committee,	built	four	

churches:	in	Chaplin	Road	(1928),	Becontree	Avenue	(1929),	Wood	Lane	(Halley	

Memorial)	(1933)	and	Oxlow	Lane	(1939).	The	Wood	Lane	church	was	given	by	Mrs.	

Halley	in	memory	of	her	husband.	In	1961	those	in	Chaplin	Road,	Becontree	Avenue,	

and	Oxlow	Lane	joined	in	a	federation	under	the	leadership	of	a	senior	minister.	(fn.	

116)		

There	is	one	Congregational	church	at	Becontree:	the	Osborne	Hall,	Osborne	Square,	

founded	in	1930	by	the	London	Missionary	Society	and	the	London	Congregational	

Union.	The	present	building	was	erected	in	1931.	(fn.	117)		

The	Salvation	Army	built	two	halls,	in	Becontree	Avenue	and	Dagenham	Avenue,	both	in	

1928.	(fn.	118)	The	London	City	Mission	also	has	two	halls.	One	of	these,	the	Dawson	

Hall,	Hedgemans	Road,	is	in	Barking.	(fn.	119)	The	other,	Bethel	Hall,	Bennetts	Castle	
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Lane,	originally	used	the	premises	of	the	old	Robin	Hood	public	house.	The	present	

building	was	erected	about	1934.	(fn.	120)	In	1942	the	London	City	Mission	took	over	a	

third	hall,	in	Dagenham	Road.	This	had	been	built	by	W.	N.	Williamson	in	1937.	The	

Mission	carried	on	the	work	there	until	1960.	The	hall	was	then	sold	and	the	money	

used	to	buy	a	site	on	the	Harold	Hill	L.C.C.	estate	at	Romford.	(fn.	121)	The	Christian	

Temple,	Green	Lane,	was	opened	in	1932	by	the	Four	Square	Gospellers	after	a	tent	

campaign.	(fn.	122)	There	are	Full	Gospel	churches	in	Vicarage	Road,	Dagenham	

(opened	about	1931),	and	Albany	Road,	Chadwell	Heath	(about	1935).	(fn.	123)	A	hall	

belonging	to	the	Brethren	was	opened	in	Manford	Way,	Hainault,	in	1956.	(fn.	124)		

SYNAGOGUE.	

The	Hainault	and	District	Synagogue,	Huntsman	Road,	was	founded	in	1951.	(fn.	125)		

SCHOOLS.		

At	the	time	when	the	first	school	board	was	formed	for	Dagenham,	in	1874,	(fn.	126)	

there	were	5	elementary	schools	in	the	parish,	of	which	two	were	charity	schools	on	

Ford's	foundation,	two	belonged	to	the	Church	of	England,	and	one	was	probably	

connected	with	the	Plymouth	Brethren.	(fn.	127)	Two	were	in	Dagenham	village,	two	at	

Chadwell	Heath,	and	one	at	Collier	Row.	During	the	next	30	years	the	school	board	built	

5	more	schools,	at	Dagenham	village,	Becontree	Heath,	Chadwell	Heath,	Hainault,	and	

Marsh	Green.	In	the	same	period	two	of	the	older	schools,	at	Dagenham	village	and	

Chadwell	Heath,	were	closed,	so	that	when	the	county	council	took	over	control	there	

were	8	schools	in	the	parish.	The	council	built	a	school	in	Whalebone	Lane	(1907)	and	

closed	its	Hainault	school	(1911).		

In	1921,	when	the	building	of	the	Becontree	estate	began,	the	parish	was	thus	being	

served	by	8	village	elementary	schools,	5	of	them	council	schools.	The	growth	of	

Becontree	laid	upon	the	county	council	the	unprecedented	task	of	providing	schools	for	

a	child	population	that	rose	within	15	years	to	about	25,000.	(fn.	128)	The	first	part	of	
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the	estate,	built	in	1921–4,	was	mainly	in	north	Dagenham,	between	Longbridge	Road	

and	Chadwell	Heath	railway	station.	Only	4	of	the	existing	schools	—	three	at	Chadwell	

Heath	and	one	at	Becontree	Heath	—	were	near	enough	to	serve	this	area.	These	

schools	were	soon	crowded	with	children	from	the	estate.	Others	attended	a	temporary	

school	in	the	church	hall	of	St.	Thomas,	Burnside	Road,	on	the	Ilford	side	of	the	estate,	

but	many	remained	without	schooling	during	this	period.		

The	first	permanent	new	school	on	the	estate	was	opened	in	1923,	in	Green	Lane.	The	

second	period	of	the	estate	(1924–9)	began	with	pressure	on	the	old	schools	in	south	

Dagenham,	and	a	temporary	school	was	opened	in	the	Dagenham	Drill	Hall	(1924–6).	By	

1929,	however,	the	county	council	had	built	a	total	of	fifteen	new	schools,	two	of	them	

for	seniors,	on	the	Dagenham	part	of	the	estate,	and	another	had	been	built	by	Ilford	

Borough	Council.	Many	of	the	children	on	the	estate	were	by	then	reaching	senior	

school	age.	At	the	same	time	the	county	council	was	planning	to	re-organize	all	its	

schools	on	the	lines	of	the	Hadow	Report.	The	main	feature	of	that	re-organization	was	

the	building	of	separate	schools	for	children	over	11.	Dagenham,	because	of	its	special	

needs,	was	the	first	place	in	the	county	to	be	so	re-organized,	by	a	scheme	completed	in	

1935.	(fn.	129)		

In	1930	an	intermediate	(senior	selective)	school	was	opened	at	Romford,	which	in	

1932–3	was	drawing	half	of	its	intake	from	Dagenham.	In	1936	a	secondary	(technical)	

school	was	opened	in	the	same	buildings	as	the	new	South	East	Essex	Technical	College,	

which	is	situated	in	Barking	on	the	western	edge	of	the	Becontree	estate.	(fn.	130)	In	

the	same	year	a	county	high	school	was	opened	in	Dagenham.	Meanwhile,	between	

1929	and	1935,	several	new	elementary	schools	had	been	built	by	the	county	in	

Dagenham,	and	by	Barking	Borough	Council	on	its	part	of	the	estate.	During	the	same	

period	three	Roman	Catholic	elementary	schools	were	also	built,	two	in	Dagenham	and	

one	in	Ilford.		



Building Record for: 
Sacred Heart Convert, Dagenham, Essex.  

	

	 	 Touchstone	Archaeology		76	

During	the	Second	World	War	nursery	classes,	for	children	between	3	and	5,	were	

opened	at	four	schools	in	Dagenham.	These	continued	after	the	war.	(fn.	131)		

Under	the	Education	Act	(1944)	the	Borough	of	Dagenham	exercised	its	right	to	become	

an	Excepted	District,	within	the	county's	system	of	divisional	administration.	(fn.	132)	

Between	1945	and	1962	6	new	county	schools	were	built	in	Dagenham.	(fn.	133)	One	of	

these	is	secondary	(technical),	two	secondary	(modern),	and	one	a	special	school.	Three	

of	the	new	schools	serve	post-war	housing	estates,	two	at	Marks	Gate	and	one	at	

Hainault.	During	the	same	period	two	Roman	Catholic	secondary	(modern)	schools	have	

been	built.	Rush	Green	College	of	Further	Education	was	opened	in	1961,	in	Dagenham	

Road.		

All	the	primary	schools	in	Dagenham,	except	two	Roman	Catholic	ones	are	now	

separately	organized	for	juniors	and	infants.	This	means	that	in	many	cases	what	was	

originally	a	single	school	has	become	a	pair	of	schools,	often	on	the	same	site	and	with	a	

common	name.		

In	the	following	chronological	sections	the	account	of	each	school	is	placed	according	to	

the	date	of	its	original	foundation.	Since	there	has	been	much	re-building	and	re-

organization	the	information	in	a	section	overlaps	the	dates	contained	in	the	heading.		

Elementary	schools	founded	before	1921.		

There	are	said	to	have	been	a	boys	school	and	a	girls	school	in	Dagenham	between	1690	

and	1700.	(fn.	134)	How	long	these	survived	is	not	known.	Two	educational	charities	

founded	in	the	18th	century	are	mentioned	below.	(fn.	135)	In	1787	a	Sunday	school	

was	established	which	later	came	into	union	with	the	National	Society.	A	Church	day	

school	seems	to	have	been	held	between	1817	and	1820	but	to	have	been	closed	by	

1822.	(fn.	136)	In	1835	a	school	was	built	near	the	church	on	land	given	by	the	vicar,	T.	

L.	Fanshawe,	and	with	aid	from	the	government	and	the	National	Society.		
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	(fn.	137)	It	was	closed	about	1878,	(fn.	138)	probably	as	a	result	of	the	building	of	the	

infants	board	school	(1874)	and	the	re-organization	of	Ford's	school	(1877).		

The	Independent	chapel	at	Marks	Gate,	built	in	1821,	(fn.	139)	had	a	schoolroom	

attached,	in	which	a	Sunday	school	was	held.	Whether	there	was	ever	a	day	school	

there	is	not	certain.		

Ford's	endowed	junior	school	(Church	Elm	Lane).	Ford's	school	was	founded	by	the	will,	

proved	1826,	of	William	Ford,	a	Dagenham	farmer,	who	left	£10,000	in	trust	to	the	

churchwardens	and	overseers	to	establish	a	school	for	30	boys	and	20	girls	of	the	parish.	

Education	was	to	be	on	Church	principles.	No	person	related	to	the	Fanshawe	family	

was	to	act	as	trustee.	The	charity	was	regulated	by	a	Chancery	scheme	of	1828,	under	

which	a	school	was	opened	in	a	rented	building	near	the	church.	The	boys	attending	

were	between	8	and	14	years	of	age,	the	girls	between	8	and	12.	In	the	following	years	

part	of	the	charity	income	was	saved,	and	this	surplus,	having	accumulated	to	about	

£1,000,	was	used	in	1841	to	build	a	permanent	school,	and	a	teacher's	house.	(fn.	140)	

In	1854	the	trustees	built	a	branch	school,	with	about	80	places,	in	Whalebone	Lane,	

Chadwell	Heath	(fn.	141).	By	1863	the	numbers	attending	the	Church	Elm	Lane	school	

had	risen	to	35	boys	and	22	girls.	(fn.	142)		

Under	a	Charity	Commission	scheme	of	1877	both	the	schools	on	Ford's	foundation	

were	to	be	conducted	as	public	elementary	schools.	Fifty	free	places,	equally	divided	

between	boys	and	girls,	were	to	be	provided.	A	board	of	governors,	consisting	of	the	

vicar	and	churchwardens,	local	representatives	and	co-opted	members,	replaced	the	

trustees.	The	teachers	were	required	to	be	certificated	and	to	be	Churchmen.	(fn.	143)	

Under	these	conditions	the	school	qualified	for	a	government	grant,	which	it	was	

receiving	by	1880.	(fn.	144)	As	provision	was	made	for	the	accommodation	of	other	

children	besides	the	free	scholars,	attendance	increased	rapidly,	and	in	1909	the	

teacher's	house	was	rebuilt	as	a	school	hall.	In	1932	the	school	was	re-organized	for	
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juniors.	It	became	Aided	in	1951.	(fn.	145)	The	Chadwell	Heath	branch	school	was	

rebuilt	in	1885	and	later	enlarged,	but	in	1935	it	was	closed.	(fn.	146)		

Sarah	Stone	(d.	1852),	a	niece	of	William	Ford,	left	£200,	the	income	to	provide	

Christmas	dinner	for	the	children	of	Ford's	school.	The	scheme	of	1877	provided	that	

the	income	was	in	future	to	be	used	for	school	prizes.	(fn.	147)		

In	1844	Francis	Glenny	built	an	infants	school	at	Chadwell	Heath.	The	building	was	also	

used	by	the	Plymouth	Brethren	(fn.	148)	with	whom	the	school	was	probably	

connected.	The	school	appears	to	have	ceased	between	1882	and	1890.	(fn.	149)		

The	Oaks	Church	of	England	junior	school	(Collier	Row	Road)	was	formerly	called	the	

Hainault	Forest	school.	It	was	built	in	1847–8	with	the	aid	of	public	subscriptions	and	a	

government	grant,	(fn.	150)	and	was	enlarged	in	1913–14.	It	was	reorganized	for	juniors	

and	infants	in	1936,	and	for	juniors	only	in	1957.	It	became	Controlled	in	1949.	(fn.	151)		

The	Village	county	infants	school	(Church	Elm	Lane)	was	opened	as	an	infants	board	

school	in	1874.	It	has	been	several	times	enlarged.	(fn.	152)		

Becontree	Heath	county	junior	and	infants	schools.	Becontree	Heath	board	school	was	

opened	in	1877,	in	Wood	Lane,	and	was	enlarged	in	1893.	It	was	re-organized	for	juniors	

and	infants	in	1935.	The	juniors	are	still	(1962)	in	Wood	Lane,	but	a	new	infants	school	

was	opened	in	Frizlands	Lane	in	1950.	(fn.	153)		

St.	Chad's	county	infants	school	(Japan	Road)	was	opened	in	1883	as	the	Chadwell	Heath	

infants	board	school.	It	was	enlarged	in	1897	and	1907.	(fn.	154)		

Hainault	board	school	(Hog	Hill)	was	opened	in	1885.	Attendance	was	always	low	and	in	

1911	the	school	was	closed.	The	building	is	now	(1962)	used	by	the	Hainault	Golf	Club.	

(fn.	155)		
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Marsh	Green	county	junior	and	infants	schools	(New	Road).	Marsh	Green	board	school	

was	opened	in	1902.	A	new	senior	department	was	built	in	1927.	The	school	was	re-

organized	in	1935	for	juniors	and	infants.	(fn.	156)		

The	Warren	county	junior	school	(Whalebone	Avenue)	and	Furze	county	infants	school	

(Bennett	Road)	both	at	Chadwell	Heath.	The	Whalebone	council	school	(Bennett	Road)	

was	opened	in	1907.	It	was	re-organized	in	1935	for	juniors	and	infants.	The	building	

was	destroyed	by	bombing	in	1940	and	the	school	was	then	accommodated	in	the	

Warren	secondary	schools	(see	below).	In	1949	Furze	school	was	built	on	the	Bennett	

Road	site	for	the	infants.	(fn.	157)	The	juniors	received	permanent	accommodation	in	

the	Warren	girls	school	when	the	two	secondary	schools	were	amalgamated	in	1958.	

(fn.	158)		

Elementary	schools	founded	between	1921	and	1939.	(fn.	159)		

All	the	schools	mentioned	in	this	section,	except	the	Roman	Catholic	schools,	were	built	

by	the	county	council.	One	elementary	school	subsequently	re-organized	for	seniors	is	

included	in	the	following	section.		

The	Henry	Green	(formerly	Green	Lane)	schools	were	opened	for	juniors	(1923)	and	

infants	(1924).	Thomas	Arnold	(formerly	Arnold	Road),	opened	in	1925,	Charlecote	

(Road)	(1926),	Godwin	(formerly	Finnymore	Road)	(1926),	Valence	(Bonham	Road)	

(1926),	Grafton	(Road)	(1928),	and	Rush	Green	(Dagenham	Road)	(1933)	schools,	were	

all	reorganized	for	juniors	and	infants	in	1935.		

Richard	Alibon	(formerly	Alibon	Road)	schools	(1927)	and	Hunters	Hall	(Rockwell	Road)	

schools	(1928),	were	re-organized	for	juniors	and	infants	in	1933.		

Beam	schools	(Oval	Road	North)	(1933)	were	reorganized	for	juniors	and	infants	in	

1951,	when	the	juniors	were	given	new	premises.		
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Fanshawe	(Crescent)	school,	opened	in	1928,	was	re-organized	in	1929	for	senior	boys,	

mixed	juniors,	and	infants.	Parsloes	school	(Spurling	Road)	(1928)	took	senior	girls,	

mixed	juniors,	and	infants.	These	two	schools	were	re-organized	for	juniors	and	infants	

in	1945.	The	Fanshawe	infants	school	was	closed	in	1962.		

Southwood	junior	and	infants	schools	(Keppel	Road)	were	opened	in	1928	and	Five	Elms	

(Wood	Lane)	junior	and	infants	schools	in	1929.		

St.	Peter's	Roman	Catholic	primary	school	(Goresbrook	Road)	was	opened	in	1933	and	

reorganized	for	juniors	and	infants	in	1947.	St.	Joseph's	R.C.	primary	school	(Connor	

Road)	was	opened	in	1935	for	juniors	and	infants.	These	two	schools	became	Aided	in	

1951.		

Senior	and	Secondary	Schools	founded	between	1921	and	1939.		

Unless	otherwise	stated	all	the	schools	mentioned	in	this	section	were	founded	as	

senior	county	schools	and	became	secondary	modern	schools	under	the	1944	Act.		

Halbutt	(Street)	boys	and	girls	schools	were	opened	in	1928.	Lymington	(Road)	school,	

opened	in	1928	as	an	elementary	school,	was	re-organized	in	1935	for	mixed	seniors.	

Goresbrook	(Road)	mixed	school	was	opened	in	1929,	Park	(Rectory	Road)	mixed	in	

1932,	and	Eastbrook	boys	and	girls	schools	(Dagenham	Road)	in	1934.	Marley	(School	

Road)	opened	as	a	mixed	school	in	1934.	It	was	reorganized	in	1937	into	separate	

schools	for	boys	and	girls,	which	were	again	amalgamated	in	1960.		

Triptons	boys	and	girls	schools	(Green	Lane)	and	Warren	boys	and	girls	schools	

(Whalebone	Lane	North)	were	opened	in	1935.	In	1958	the	two	Warren	schools	were	

amalgamated,	and	the	building	previously	used	by	the	girls	became	the	Warren	junior	

school	(see	above).		
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In	1945	the	senior	departments	of	Fanshawe	school	(boys)	and	Parsloes	school	(girls)	

became	separate	schools.	In	1959	the	Fanshawe	and	Halbutt	boys	secondary	schools	

were	amalgamated,	in	the	Halbutt	buildings,	under	the	name	Beverley.		

Dagenham	county	high	school	(Parsloes	Avenue),	a	mixed	grammar	school,	was	opened	

in	1936.		

Primary	schools	founded	since	1945.		

The	county	council	built	the	John	Perry	junior	and	infants	schools	(Western	Avenue)	

(1952),	Leys	(Avenue)	infants	school	(1953)	and	Marks	Gate	(Lawn	Farm	Grove)	infants	

school	(1957).	(fn.	160)	The	Furze	infants	school	(1949),	which	replaced	an	earlier	

school,	has	been	mentioned	above.		

Secondary	schools	founded	since	1945.		

The	county	council	built	Kingswood	(Harbourer	Road,	Hainault)	mixed	secondary	

(modern)	school	in	1952,	(fn.	161)	John	Preston	(Rose	Lane,	Marks	Gate)	mixed	

secondary	(modern)	school	(1961),	and	Robert	Clack	(Wood	Lane)	secondary	(technical)	

school	(1955).		

Bishop	Ward	(Wood	Lane)	Roman	Catholic	secondary	(modern)	school	was	opened	in	

1954	as	a	mixed	school.	It	was	re-organized	for	boys	in	1962,	when	the	Sacred	Heart	

Convent	(Goresbrook	Road)	R.C.	secondary	(modern)	school	for	girls	was	opened.		

Special	school.		

The	Bentry	special	school,	Heathway	(formerly	the	Heathway	school),	for	physically	

handicapped	and	educationally	subnormal	children,	was	opened	by	the	county	council	

in	1934	and	extended	in	1937.		
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CHARITIES	FOR	THE	POOR.		

By	a	scheme	of	1929	the	charities	of	Armstead,	White,	Witham,	Comyns,	Bennett,	

Wepler,	Widows'	Wood,	and	Arnold	were	united	under	one	body	of	trustees.	A	scheme	

of	1931	further	provided	that	the	income	from	all	these	charities,	except	that	from	

White's	and	Widows'	Wood	(which	was	to	be	paid,	as	before,	to	widows),	was	to	be	

used	to	support	the	almshouses.	In	1960	the	income	from	the	united	charities	

amounted	to	£293,	which	included	donations	and	profits	from	entertainments.	Of	this,	

£245	was	spent,	mainly	on	repairs	to	the	houses,	and	on	gift	vouchers.	(fn.	162)	The	

balance	in	hand	at	the	end	of	the	year	was	£1,186.		

William	Armstead,	by	will	proved	1657,	left	£2	rent-charge	from	a	farm	at	Harold	Wood,	

in	Hornchurch,	for	the	relief	of	the	poor.	In	1835	it	was	being	distributed	in	doles	along	

with	Witham's	and	Wepler's	charities.	(fn.	163)	In	1956	the	rent-charge	was	redeemed	

for	stock.	(fn.	164)		

John	White,	by	will	proved	1673,	left	£2	12s.	rent-charge	to	provide	bread	every	week	

for	seven	widows	or	other	poor	persons.	(fn.	165)		

William	Witham,	by	will	proved	about	1692,	left	£5	rent-charge	for	the	poor.	It	was	

redeemed	for	stock	in	1908.	(fn.	166)		

Richard	Uphill	(d.	1718),	left	two	annuities,	one	of	£50,	expiring	in	1791,	the	other	of	

£40,	expiring	in	1803,	to	apprentice	the	children	of	poor	parishioners	not	receiving	alms.	

The	legacy	became	effective	on	the	death	of	his	sister	in	1724	or	1725.	By	1803	£5,000	

had	been	saved	from	the	annuities	and	invested	to	form	a	permanent	endowment.	It	

was	then	decided	that	the	income	should	be	used	to	pay	apprenticing	premiums,	to	

provide	clothes	for	children	going	into	domestic	service,	and	for	Christmas	gifts	for	

children.	(fn.	167)	In	1826–32	this	charity	was	often	used	to	relieve	poor	families	with	

children.	(fn.	168)	By	a	scheme	of	1911	£25	of	the	income	was	to	be	used	for	
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educational	purposes,	and	the	remainder	for	apprenticing	or	other	assistance	to	

children	starting	work.	(fn.	169)		

Thomas	Waters	(d.	1756)	left	£100	stock	to	educate	poor	children.	In	1835	the	income	

was	being	paid	to	the	wife	of	the	Sunday	schoolmaster	to	teach	girls	chosen	by	the	

vicar.	(fn.	170)	It	has	since	been	used	for	the	Sunday	school,	(fn.	171)	and	for	the	

payment	of	evening	school	fees.	(fn.	172)		

In	1757	John	Comyns	settled	a	building	called	Wrights,	in	Dagenham,	in	trust	to	provide	

£2	a	year	for	the	poor.	In	1810	Wrights	was	converted	into	a	parish	workhouse	and	the	

vestry	undertook	to	pay	£2	a	year	to	a	baker	to	provide	bread	for	widows.	(fn.	173)	In	

1847	the	building	was	repaired	at	parish	expense	and	converted	into	almshouses.	(fn.	

174)	By	1874	all	the	trustees	were	dead	and	the	almshouses	were	dilapidated	and	

occupied	by	squatters.	In	1877	new	trustees	were	appointed	and	the	houses	put	in	

order.	(fn.	175)	Because	there	was	no	endowment	repairs	remained	a	problem.	This	was	

met	by	the	scheme	of	1931	(see	above)	which	also	provided	that	the	trustees	might	

borrow	£500	from	the	Roger	Reede	charity	to	repair	Comyns'	almshouses,	and	might	

charge	the	tenants	a	small	rent.	In	1960	there	were	8	tenants.	(fn.	176)	The	almshouses	

are	contained	in	a	twostoried	red-brick	range	standing	at	right	angles	to	the	road	on	the	

north	side	of	Crown	Street.	The	building	appears	to	be	largely	of	19th-century	date.		

In	1820	Mrs.	Wepler,	of	Furze	House,	Marks	Gate,	left	£30	to	buy	stock,	the	income	to	

be	given	to	the	poor.	(fn.	177)		

By	his	will	proved	1826	William	Ford	left	£1,000	stock	to	provide	clothing	for	poor	

members	of	the	Church	of	England	not	receiving	parish	relief.	(fn.	178)	In	1960	the	

income	was	applied	according	to	the	terms	of	the	trust.	(fn.	179)		

In	1817	Alexander	Bennett	left	£400	stock,	subject	to	certain	life	interests,	to	maintain	

the	tombs	of	his	family	and	for	the	relief	of	the	poor.	This	charity	became	effective	in	

1851.	(fn.	180)		



Building Record for: 
Sacred Heart Convert, Dagenham, Essex.  

	

	 	 Touchstone	Archaeology		84	

By	ancient	custom	each	poor	widow	within	Hainault	Forest	received	from	the	Crown	on	

Easter	Monday	a	load	of	wood	or	8s.	in	lieu.	(fn.	181)	When	the	forest	was	disafforested	

in	1851	£82	was	invested	to	provide	doles	of	fuel	for	poor	widows	of	the	parts	of	the	

parish	formerly	within	the	forest.	(fn.	182)	This	is	the	Widows'	Wood	charity.		

J.	Arnold,	by	will	proved	1857,	left	£100	stock	to	keep	his	tomb	in	repair,	and	for	the	

poor.	(fn.	183)		

Dagenham	shared	in	Roger	Reede's	almshouse	charity,	founded	1482,	which	applied	

principally	to	Romford.	A	scheme	of	1821	further	provided	that	£10	a	year	from	that	

charity	should	be	given	to	the	poor	of	Dagenham.	In	1940	this	was	increased	to	£20.	(fn.	

184)		

James	Symonds,	vicar	of	Dagenham	(d.	1719)	left	£20	for	schooling	poor	children.	This	

charity	was	mentioned	in	1786	but	had	disappeared	by	1835.	(fn.	185)		

William	Ford's	endowed	school,	and	Sarah	Stone's	charity	connected	with	it,	are	

described	above.	(fn.	186)	Nathaniel	Rogers's	charity	for	the	church	is	described	above.	

(fn.	187)	Several	non-funded	charitable	legacies	have	been	listed	by	Shawcross.	(fn.	188)		
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Historic	Environment	Records:		

Via	Heritage	Gateway	

Victorian	County	History:		

http://www.british-history.ac.uk/vch/essex/vol5/pp294-302		

RIBA	Online	Achieves:		

Photo	of	handrail		

https://www.architecture.com/image-library/ribapix/image-

information/poster/convent-of-the-	sacred-heart-dagenham-london-detail-of-an-oak-

staircase/posterid/RIBA72683.html		
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Historic	England:	Criteria	for	Selection		

https://content.historicengland.org.uk/images-books/publications/dlsg-places-

worship/heag124-	places-of-worship-lsg.pdf		

Historic	England:	Planning	Appeal		

https://historicengland.org.uk/advice/hpg/planning-cases/sacred-heart-convent-

dagenham		

https://content.historicengland.org.uk/content/docs/legal/appeal-decision-sacred-

heart-convent-	dagenham.pdf		

Historic	England:	Red	Boxes		

None		

News:		

http://www.barkinganddagenhampost.co.uk/news/former-dagenham-convent-

approved-for-8m-	homeless-hostel-1-4890205		

Other:		

https://modgov.lbbd.gov.uk/Internet/documents/s109832/Sacred%20Heart%20Report

%20-	%20App.%202%20Design%20Study.pdf	
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 Appendix	7	–	Historic	Environment	Records	(HER)		18.

Search:	Dagenham	

	Date:	17/07/18		

Statutory	Data		

The	National	Heritage	List	for	England		

The	National	Heritage	List	for	England	is	the	official	and	up-to-date	database	for	all	

nationally	designated	assets,	including	Listed	Buildings,	Scheduled	Monuments,	

Registered	Parks	and	Gardens,	Registered	Battlefields	and	Protected	Wreck	Sites.		

The	National	Heritage	List	for	England	returned	52	records	matching	your	search,	here	
are	the	first	5.		
	

Title		 Type	 Location		 Grade		

Valence	House	 Listing		 Valence	House,	Becontree	Avenue,	Becontree,	
Dagenham,	Barking	And	Dagenham,	Greater	London	
Authority		

II*	

Furze	House		 Listing	 Furze	House	Farmhouse,	Billet	Road,	Marks	Gate,	
Dagenham,	Barking	And	Dagenham,	Greater	London	
Authority	

II	

Remains	of	

Barking	

Abbey…	

Listing	 Remains	Of	Barking	Abbey	And	Old	Churchyard	Walls,	
Broadway,	Barking,	Barking	And	Dagenham,	Greater	
London	Authority		

II	

Fire	Bell	Gate		 Listing	 Fire	Bell	Gate,	Barking	Abbey,	Broadway,	Barking,	
	

Barking	And	Dagenham,	Greater	London	Authority		

II*	

Parish	Church	

Of	St	Margaret	

Listing	 Parish	Church	Of	St	Margaret,	Broadway,	Barking,	
Barking	And	Dagenham,	Greater	London	Authority		

I	
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National	Designation	Decisions		

Designation	Decision	Records	(De-listed	entries)		

Recommendations	to	remove	listed	buildings,	scheduled	monuments	and	protected	

wreck	sites	from	the	National	Heritage	List	for	England	(NHLE)	are	made	by	Historic	

England.	The	Secretary	of	State	for	Culture,	Media	and	Sport	will	then	make	a	decision.	

Decisions	to	remove	registered	park,	garden	and	battlefield	List	entries	are	made	by	

Historic	England.	A	list	of	decisions	made	to	remove	buildings,	monuments,	landscapes	

and	wreck	sites	from	the	NHLE	can	be	found	in	this	section.		

Designation	Decision	Records	(De-listed	entries)	returned	1	records	matching	your	

search.	

Title	 Type	 Location			 Grade		

THE	WARREN	STONE	 Listing		 THE	WARREN	STONE,	WHALEBONE	LANE	
NORTH,	Non	Civil	Parish,	Barking	and	
Dagenham,	Greater	London	Authority		

DL	
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Designation	Decision	Records	(Non-designated	entries)		

Recommendations	not	to	add	a	building,	monument	or	wreck	site	to	the	National	

Heritage	List	for	England	(NHLE)	are	made	by	Historic	England.	The	Secretary	of	State	for	

Culture,	Media	and	Sport	will	then	make	a	decision.	For	parks,	gardens	and	battlefields	

Historic	England	makes	the	decision	on	whether	or	not	to	add	it	to	the	NHLE.	These	

decisions	are	detailed	in	this	section.		

Designation	Decision	Records	(Non-designated	entries)	returned	4	records	matching	

your	search.		

Title		 Type		 Location	 Grade		

Sacred	Heart	

Convent	

Listing		 Sacred	Heart	Convent,	Goresbrook	Road,	
Dagenham,	RM9	6XD,	Non	Civil	Parish,	
Barking	and	Dagenham,	Greater	London	
Authority		

NL	

Roundhouse,	Lodge	

Avenue	

Listing	 Roundhouse,	Lodge	Avenue,	Dagenham,	
Dagenham,	RM8	2HY,	Non	Civil	Parish,	
Barking	and	Dagenham,	Greater	London		

Authority		

NL	

Fisons	bagging	pl...		

	

Listing	 Trad	Scaffolding,	80	River	Road,	Barking,	IG11	
0DS,	Non	Civil	Parish,	Barking	and	Dagenham,	
Greater	London	Authority		

NL	

White	Horse	Public	
House...		

Listing	 White	Horse,	118	High	Road,	Romford,	RM6	
6NU,	Non	Civil	Parish,	Barking	and	
Dagenham,	Greater	London	Authority		

NL	
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Historic	Milestone	Society	Database		

The	Milestone	society	was	established	in	May	2001,	we	aim	to	"identify,	record,	

research,	conserve	and	interpret	for	public	benefit	the	milestones	and	other	

waymarkers	of	the	British	Isles".	Our	members'	interests	also	include	tollhouses,	

turnpike	history	and	canal	milestones.	Please	browse	

http://www.milestonesociety.co.uk/	to	learn	more	about	the	history	of	milestones	and	

about	restoration	techniques,	about	our	activities	and	our	publications.		

Historic	Milestone	Society	Database	returned	2	records	matching	your	search.		

Title		 Location		

Parish	Boundary	Post		 Greater	London,	Barking	And	Dagenham,	Barking		

Parish	Boundary	Post		 Greater	London,	Barking	And	Dagenham,	Dagenham		
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HE	PastScape		

The	information	within	PastScape	is	taken	directly	from	the	National	Record	of	the		

	
Historic	Environment	(NRHE).	The	NRHE	contains	over	410,000	records	on	the	

archaeology	and	buildings	of	England	and	its	territorial	waters.		

HE	PastScape	returned	157	records	matching	your	search,	here	are	the	first	5.		

	 	

Title		 Location		 Description		
DAGENHAM	IDOL		 Greater	London	Authority		

	

Anthropomorphic	
wooden	figurine	
from	Da...		

DAGENHAM	BREACH		 Greater	London	Authority		 Prehistoric	
environmental	finds	
from	Ma...		

CROSS	KEYS	INN	DAGENHAM		 Greater	London	Authority		 Inn,	prob	15th	cent.		

DAGENHAM	VICARAGE		 Greater	London	Authority		 Vicarage-17th	Cent.		

DAGENHAM	BEAM	BRIDGE		 Greater	London	Authority		 Bridge		
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National	Trust	HBSMR		

The	National	Trust	is	the	largest	private	owner	of	archaeological	sites	in	England,	Wales	

and	Northern	Ireland.	Our	Historic	Buildings,	Sites	&	Monuments	Record	(NT	HBSMR)	is	

the	key	tool	for	managing,	revealing	and	sharing	the	historic	environment	in	our	care.		

National	Trust	HBSMR	returned	3	records	matching	your	search.	

Name		 National	trust	property		

Eastbury	House,	Eastbury	Square,	Barking,	
Essex		

Eastbury	Manor	House;	London	and	South	
East		

Garden	Walls,	Eastbury	House		 Eastbury	Manor	House;	London	and	South	
East		

Site	service	building	in	the	east	(formal)	

garden,	Rainham	Hall	
Rainham	Hall;	London	and	South	East		
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Parks	and	Gardens	UK		

Parks	and	Gardens	UK	is	a	web	resource	dedicated	to	historic	designed	landscapes	

across	England,	Northern	Ireland,	Scotland	and	Wales.		

Parks	and	Gardens	UK	returned	4	records	matching	your	search.		

Title		 Location		

Barking	Park		 Greater	London	Authority,	Barking	and	
Dagenham	Lo	...		

Chadwell	Heath	Cemetery		 Greater	London	Authority,	Barking	and	
Dagenham	Lo	...		

Eastbrookend	Cemetery		 Greater	London	Authority,	Barking	and	
Dagenham	Lo	...		

Rippleside	Cemetery		 Greater	London	Authority,	Barking	and	
Dagenham	Lo	...		

	

	

PMSA		

The	PMSA	aims	to	heighten	public	appreciation	of	Britain's	public	sculpture,	and	to	

contribute	to	its	preservation,	protection	and	promotion.	It	seeks	to	achieve	this	

through	several	projects	that	include:	the	National	Recording	Project,	the	Sculpture	

Journal,	Save	our	Sculpture	and	the	Marsh	Award	for	Public	Sculpture.		

There	was	a	problem	communicating	with	PMSA.		
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NMR	Excavation	Index		

The	Excavation	Index	(EI)	is	a	guide	to	the	archaeological	excavations	and	interventions	

carried	out	in	England	since	the	earliest	days	of	scientific	archaeology,	and	an	index	to	

the	location	of	the	excavation	archives	and	finds.	It	is	part	of	the	National	Monuments	

Record,	England's	heritage	archive.		

NMR	Excavation	Index	returned	190	records	matching	your	search,	here	are	the	first	5.		

Title		 Location		

15-17	GLEBE	ROAD,	DAGENHAM	 GREATER	LONDON	AUTHORITY,	BARKING	
AND	DAGENHAM,		

HEWLETT'S	QUAY,	ABBEY	ROAD	 GREATER	LONDON	AUTHORITY,	BARKING	
AND	DAGENHAM,		

BARKING	LIBRARY,	CLOCKHOUSE	AVENUE	 GREATER	LONDON	AUTHORITY,	BARKING	
AND	DAGENHAM,		

GASCOIGNE	ROAD,	BARKING	 GREATER	LONDON	AUTHORITY,	BARKING	
AND	DAGENHAM,		

CENTRAL	PARK,	DAGENHAM	 GREATER	LONDON	AUTHORITY,	BARKING	
AND	DAGENHAM,		
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Church	Heritage	Record		

The	Church	Heritage	Record	is	a	digital	database	of	church	buildings	in	England	

developed	by	ChurchCare,	the	Church	of	England's	national	resource.		

Church	Heritage	Record	returned	3	records	matching	your	search.	

Name		 location	

Dagenham:	St	Peter	&	St	Paul		 Greater	London	Authority		

Dagenham:	St	Martin		 Greater	London	Authority		

Dagenham:	St	Luke	 Not	Applicable		
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Local	Records		

Essex	HER		

The	Essex	Historic	Environment	Record	(EHER)	is	a	computerised	database	of	all	listed	

and	other	historic	buildings	and	all	known	archaeological	sites,	historic	parks	and	

gardens	and	other	historic	landscape	features	in	the	county,	plotted	onto	linked	digital	

mapping,	and	backed	up	in	many	instances	by	photographs,	drawings	and	substantial	

written	accounts.		

Essex	HER	returned	1	records	matching	your	search.	

Name		 Parish/	ward		

Anti-tank	obstacles	(destroyed),	
"Dagenham",	Walton	Road,	Fr		

FRINTON	AND	WALTON		
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Greater	London	HER		

The	Greater	London	Historic	Environment	Record	(GLHER)	is	a	computerised	record	of	

information	relating	to	historic	buildings	and	archaeological	sites	in	the	Greater	London	

area.	The	GLHER	was	started	in	1984	by	the	Greater	London	Council,	and	is	now	funded	

and	managed	by	Historic	England.		

Greater	London	HER	returned	1256	records	matching	your	search,	here	are	the	first	5.		

Title		 Location		

School	Road	[Dagenham	Park	Community	
School],	Dagenham,	Bar	...		

GREATER	LONDON	AUTHORITY,	BARKING	
AND	DAGENHAM		

Arneways	Avenue,	Ilford,	Barking	&	
Dagenham	{Post	Medieval	...		

GREATER	LONDON	AUTHORITY,	BARKING	
AND	DAGENHAM		

ST	MARGARETS	CHURCHYARD	WALL		 GREATER	LONDON	AUTHORITY,	BARKING	
AND	DAGENHAM		

Frizlands	Lane	[York	House],	Dagenham		 GREATER	LONDON	AUTHORITY,	BARKING	
AND	DAGENHAM		

Centre	road,	Wanstead	flats,	red	bridge,	

E70EA	Watching	br..		
GREATER	LONDON	AUTHORITY,	
REDBRIDGE		

	


